
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

21 June 2019 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee 
 

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 1 July 
2019 at 10.30 am in Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL 
for the transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee  
(15 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), D Brailsford, 
L A Cawrey, Mrs P Cooper, Mrs J E Killey, D McNally, Mrs A M Newton, 
Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, S P Roe, P A Skinner, H Spratt, M J Storer and 
C L Strange 
 
 

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA 
MONDAY, 1 JULY 2019 

 
 
Item 
 

Title 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Apologies/replacement members  
 

 

2.  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 

3.  Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and 
Regulation Committee held on 3 June 2019  
 

5 - 10 

4.  County Matter Applications  
 

 

4.1   To vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of Planning 
Permission Ref: 137302 to amend the site layout, the 
management of surface water run-off, the materials 
for the tertiary containment system, hours of 
deliveries and operations and security provision at 
Land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey 
Moor, Market Rasen - Barton Willmore LLP - 139426  
 

11 - 44 

4.2   For the temporary installation of 12 site security and 
welfare cabins, five water bowsers, generator and 
associated facilities at Land to the east of Smithfield 
Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen - Barton 
Willmore LLP - 139434  
 

45 - 62 

 

 
 
 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Rachel Wilson 

 
Direct Dial 01522 552107 

 
E Mail Address rachel.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords 
 

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


 



  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION 

COMMITTEE 
 3 JUNE 2019 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), D Brailsford, Mrs P Cooper, D McNally, 
Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, S P Roe, P A Skinner, H Spratt and C L Strange 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic), Neil McBride (Head of 
Planning), Rachel Wilson (Democratic Services Officer) and Mandy Withington 
(Solicitor) 
 
1     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L A Cawrey, Mrs J E Killey 
and Mrs A M Newton. 
 
2     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
The Chairman highlighted that many members of the Committee had received a letter 
from Mr Sparks in relation to the Spalding Western Relief Road.  The Chairman had 
read it and noted its contents. 
 
Councillor N H Pepper also reported that he had received several letters of objection 
in relation to the Spalding Western Relief Road. 
 
Councillor S P Roe asked that it be noted, in relation to agenda item 5.1, that he had 
two grandchildren at the school, but he had no financial interest. 
 
3     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND 

REGULATION COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 MAY 2019 
 

RESOLVED 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2019 be signed by the 
 Chairman as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
3 JUNE 2019 
 
4     TRAFFIC ITEMS 

 
4a Hartsholme - Scawby Crescent and Carrington Drive, Lincoln - proposed 

waiting restrictions  
 
The Committee received a report which set out objections received to the proposed 
waiting restrictions for Hartsholme – Scawby Crescent and Carrington Drive, Lincoln, 
which were publicly advertised from 15 November to 13 December 2018. 
 
The report outlined the existing conditions and the objections received as well as the 
comments of officers on the objections received. 
 
On a motion by Councillor I G Fleetwood, seconded by Councillor D Brailsford, it 
was:- 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
 That the amended proposals as shown in Appendix C of the report and that 
 those proposals be advertised and introduced subject to the consideration of 
 any objections received. 
 
4b Shepeau Stow/Holbeach Drove B1166 - proposed 50mph speed limit  
 
The Committee received a report in connection with objections received to the 
proposed new 50mph speed limit on the B1166 Drove Road between Shepaeu Stow 
and Holbeach Drove, as shown at Appendix B to the report. 
 
The report outlined the existing conditions and investigations and the objections 
received, as well as the comments of officers. 
 
Councillor N H Pepper made the following comments in relation to the proposal: 

 He advised that he had been lobbied by several objectors, but he lived in the 
area and knew the area well. 

 The local viewpoint was to keep the stretch of road at 40mph all the way 
through in line with other limits in the area. 

 It was believed that the traffic results were skewed due to the survey being 
carried out at rush hour. 

 It was also highlighted that those parents who wished to walk their children to 
school would struggle as there were no footpaths along the road which was 
bounded by deep ditches. 

 It was acknowledged that the road was not densely populated. 

 Speedwatch volunteers were making a difference in a lot of villages but they 
could only carry out speed checks in 30mph or 40mph areas. 

 The Road Safety Partnership had indicated that there had been 3 accidents 
over the past five years, but there was a longer history of many accidents at 
the cross roads. 

 There were concerns about the number of HGV's which were using the road. 

Page 6



3 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

3 JUNE 2019 
 

 It was noted that Gedney Parish Council was consulted but didn't comment, 
however, it was noted that this parish was 14 miles from the stretch of road in 
question, and that it did not appear that Gedney Hill Parish Council which was 
only 1 mile away had been consulted. 

 Members were informed that the local MP supported the objectors, however, it 
was understood that officers had to follow the policy. 

 
Members were provided with the opportunity to comment and ask questions on the 
information contained within the report and some of the points raised during 
discussion included the following: 

 It was queried whether, as the closest parish council had not been included in 
the consultation, and a decision was made, would that leave the Council open 
to judicial review, it was acknowledged this was a possibility. 

 The Chairman suggested that he would prefer to defer this item until Gedney 
Hill Parish Council had been consulted, and that it would come back to the 
next meeting. 

 In response to some of the comments made by Councillor Pepper, members 
were advised that the traffic survey had been carried out over a 7 day period 
so was representative of average vehicle speed throughout that period.  The 
opportunity was taken to give consideration to the side roads within the 
proposed limit where the criteria were met for the introduction of 30mph limits 
as proposed.  The proposed 50mph limit would allow the impact of the 40mph 
speed limit signage on the approaches o the built up areas of Shepeau Stow 
and Holbeach Drove to be retained.  These would have to be removed should 
a 40mph limit apply on the stretch of the B1166 between the villages.  The 
speed limit policy applied the mean speed of traffic to gauge the appropriate 
level of limit to introduce.  This was based on established research and was 
recommended in guidance provided by the Department for Transport. 

 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor H 
Spratt it was:- 
 
RESOLVED (11 in favour, 1 abstention) 
 
 That this item be deferred until consultation with Gedney Hill Parish Council 
 had taken place. 
 
4c Traffic Regulation Orders - Progress Review  
 
Consideration was given to a report which informed the Committee of the position on 
all current Traffic Regulation Orders and petitions received since the last report. 
 
One member commented that there seemed to be a bit of a back log, and there were 
a few in his area that he would like to see progressed. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be received and the receipt of petitions noted. 
 

Page 7



4 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
3 JUNE 2019 
 
5     COUNTY COUNCIL APPLICATIONS 

 
5a To construct a new classroom and carry out internal remodelling works to 

create access to the new block and convert an existing classroom to provide 
library facilities at St Michael's Church Of England Primary School, School 
Lane, Thorpe On The Hill, Lincoln - Kier Design and Business Services - 
19/0225/CCC  

 
The Committee received a report which sought planning permission for the 
construction of a new classroom and to carry out internal remodelling works to create 
access to the new block and convert an existing classroom to provide library facilities 
at St. Michael's Church of England Primary School, Thorpe on the Hill. 
 
Officers guided members through the report and set out the main issues to be 
considered in the determination of this application. 
 
Naomi Weaver, Headteacher at St Michael's Church of England Primary School, 
spoke in favour of the application and made the following points: 

 The school served the village and surrounding areas, 90% of the children 
travelled into the village. 

 The current number on roll was 180 and there had been no rapid increase as it 
had only risen from 162 in 2014/15 

 The new classroom was not to increase capacity of the school but to provide 
space for a library and intervention space to target teach children. 

 It was highlighted that there was building on three sites in the village which 
would undoubtedly bring children who would attend the school, but they would 
be able to walk. 

 17 comments had been received, only four of them had been from villagers 
who had concerns, the remaining ones were positive and were from both 
villagers and parents. 

 The concerns highlighted in the four negative comments included speed and 
volume of traffic and school parking; that the new classroom was for the new 
homes being built and not for the village children, and also highlighted the 
village being used as a rat run, speed of vehicles, volume of builders and farm 
traffic; all these comments highlighted concerns of the volume and speed of 
traffic as the primary concern.  Two of these comments highlighted issues with 
abusive parents, however this was something the school could not control, it 
only related to a minority of parents and parents were regularly reminded of 
the need to be courteous to other road users. 

 Concerns which had been raised by the parish council had been addressed 
and it was reported that an action group had now been set up with a parish 
council representative, and the school was working with the community; the 
annual meeting had only raised a single issue, speed and volume of traffic, 
rather than anything parking or school related; the travel plan had been 
reviewed and resubmitted which received praise from the approving officer, 
and the school sought specialist support in order to complete this work; 
parking at Whisby had been suggested by the Parish Council, however, the 
ability to park there had now been withdrawn by Whisby; some villagers 

Page 8



5 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

3 JUNE 2019 
 

believed that the school parking slowed down traffic and made it safer; the 
issues on surrounding roads were often caused by through traffic, not parking. 

 At the end of January 2019 water works started in Thorpe on the Hill which 
closed the main rat run through the village.  This caused a danger as the road 
outside the school became a new ratrun and highlighted that the issue was not 
school parking but volume and speed of traffic through the village. 

 The travel plan was put on hold as the situation needed to be readdressed.   

 The new plan was in place from January to March 2019 – a walking bus from 
Whisby was put in place but had to wait until after rush hour which made the 
children late; parents were also encouraged to park and stride from Oliver 
Roper Centre, which worked well whilst the road was closed; two drop off 
points were offered at the top and bottom of school lane, however this was 
labour intensive and became more difficult once the road reopened. 

 At a meeting set up in February/March 2019 which was attended by almost 
150 people, it was agreed that the bigger issues were volume and speed of 
traffic and school traffic/parking.  As a result, an action group was set up which 
included representatives from the school, community and the parish council. 

 The action group had already had successes with community gates being 
erected sooner, extra speed awareness signs being put up in the village, there 
was a campaign running for a 20mph zone around the school, community 
speed watch was in place and the traffic was being monitored by the Road 
Safety Partnership in order to gather more information regarding speed and 
volume. 

 The action group met regularly and the community was working together. 

 It was the belief of the action group that the issue was speed and volume of 
traffic in Thorpe on the Hill and if that could be addressed then the school 
parking and traffic would improve. 

 
Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the applicant and 
the following was noted: 

 It was queried whether the walking bus was a permanent fixture and how 
many young people benefitted.  Members were advised that the parking at 
Whisby had currently been withdrawn, but between 60 – 70 children were 
walking from Whisby.  Between 20 – 25 children were walking from Oliver 
Roper Centre.  Long term, the school would like to offer this from the Whisby 
end of the village as more people travelled from that end of the village.  Work 
was being done on how to manage the speed issues. 

 It was pleasing to hear that a school had ambition and was working with the 
community.  As the county council, there was a need to provide schools with 
the best facilities that it could to ensure that children were educated to the best 
of their abilities. 

 This was not an additional classroom, but an enhancement which would give 
the school back its library function. 

 That the school was working with the community to improve traffic volume and 
speed was important work and it could have wider benefits for communities. 

 Speed and parking around schools was an issue around the county, and a 
strong correlation between speed and accidents was acknowledged. 

Page 9



6 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
3 JUNE 2019 
 

 One member commented that they would like to support the application as it 
was an opportunity to put a proper library back in-house. 

 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood, seconded by Councillor Mrs M J 
Overton MBE it was:- 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
 That planning permission be granted. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.07 am 

Page 10



 
 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson 
Executive Director for Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 1 July 2019 

Subject: County Matter Application – 139426 
 

Summary: 
Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent:  Barton 
Willmore LLP) to vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of planning permission Ref: 
137302.  The proposal seeks to amend the conditions in order to enable changes 
to the site layout; to reflect changes for the management of surface water run-off; 
to amend the materials to be used in the tertiary containment system and to amend 
the hours of working associated with deliveries and site operations and security 
provision at land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen. 
 
The principle of the development has been established and as a consequence the 
key issues in this case are to consider if any of the proposed amendments would 
materially change effects on amenity since the grant of this permission. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 
 
 
Background 
 
1. Planning permission was granted (ref: 137302) on 14 May 2018 to extend 

the period of time to carry out the temporary operations to drill an 
exploratory bore hole for conventional hydrocarbons, production testing, 
evaluation and subsequent restoration at land off Smithfield Road, North 
Kelsey Moor.  This application amended an earlier planning permission (ref: 
W97/131952/14) granted December 2014.  The development comprised of 
the construction of a new access track; temporary well site and flare pit; 
stationing of portable cabins for the storage of equipment and for staff office 
accommodation, and; drilling of an exploratory borehole, carrying out of 
production tests and retention of the site and wellhead valve assembly gear 
for subsequent evaluation.  The purpose of the development was to test an 
identified underlying oil reservoir to determine whether there were 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.1



commercially viable reserves of conventional hydrocarbons available.  The 
potential oil reserves were to be accessed by conventional drilling only and 
would not involve the process of hydraulic fracturing (known as "fracking") 
which is associated with shale gas or oil development. 

 
2. The original planning permission contained a number of pre-commencement 

planning conditions which required the applicant to submit for approval 
further details relating to the development and/or to carry out certain works 
before the development could lawfully commence.  These included details 
relating to an archaeological investigation of the site, external lighting, 
fencing and bunding as well as details relating to biodiversity mitigation, the 
site access, signage and roadworks.  The various details were all submitted, 
approved and (where required) site set-up works carried out before the 
expiration of the temporary three-year period.  Consequently, although the 
drilling operations themselves have not been undertaken, the development 
has commenced and the permission has been lawfully implemented. 

 
The Application 
 
3. Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent: Barton 

Willmore) to vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of planning permission 
Ref: 137302.  The proposal seeks to amend the conditions in order to 
enable changes to the site layout, the management of surface water run-off, 
the materials for the tertiary containment system, hours of deliveries and 
operations and security provision at land to the east of Smithfield Road, 
North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen. 

 
Current Conditions 
 
4. Condition 3 lists the approved documents and plans by which the 

development is required to be carried out in accordance with.  The condition 
currently reads as follows: 

 
Except as otherwise required by other conditions attached to this permission 
the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the following documents and drawings: 

 
Documents 

 
Ref: 20271/A5/P6/VY/SO Rev 02 – 'Planning and Sustainability Statement' 
received 29 December 2017; 
Ref: Appendix 1 July 2016 – 'Site Closure and Restoration' received 29 
December 2017; 
Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Geology, Flood Risk and Pollution 
Control' received 1 September 2014; 
Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Transport & Traffic' received 1 
September 2014; 
Report number: 2636.01/ifb – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise 
Emissions' received 1 September 2014; 

Page 12



Ref: 2636.02 – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions – Additional 
Information' received 3 December 2014; and 

 
Drawings 

 
Ref: 3336 P01 Site Location Plan (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P02 Site of Application (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P03 Rev A General Layout Plan (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P04 Access Track – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P05 Access Track – Proposed Layout (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P06 Proposed Site – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P07 Proposed Site – Construction Mode (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P08 Rev A Proposed Site – Drilling Mode (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P09 Rev A Proposed Site – Lighting Layout (received 1 
September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P10 Rev A Proposed Site – Testing Mode (Indicative) (received 1 

 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P11 Rev A Proposed Site – Testing Lighting (received 1 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P12 Section A-A Section through Track (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P13 Rev A Proposed Sections Drilling Mode (received 1 
September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P14 Rev A Site Construction Sections (received 9 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P15 Rev A Sightlines & Site Entrance Details (received 9 
September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P16 Proposed Junction Works (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P17 HGV Sweeps at Junction (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P18 Drilling Rig Sweeps at Junction (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: 3336 P19 Cabin Plans and Elevations (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 T05 Existing Layby on Smithfield Road Upgrade Details (received 
17 November 2014); and 
Ref: 3336 T06 Proposed Access & Egress at Site Entrance (received 11 
November 2014). 
 
Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to monitor and control the 
development 

  
Condition 4 requires the development to be carried out in accordance with 
the approved Flood Risk Assessment which contains details of the 
measures to be adopted to manage surface water run-off.  The condition 
reads as follows: 

 

Page 13



The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
approved Flood Risk Assessment dated 20 August 2014 (received 1 
September 2014).  In particular, the surface water run-off generated by the 
100 year plus climate change critical storm shall be limited so that it will not 
exceed 5l/s, as recommended in section 4.15. 
 
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage/disposal of 
surface water from the site 

 
Condition 6 requires the fencing and bunding around the site to be carried 
out in accordance with details that have previously been approved.  The 
condition reads as follows: 

 
The fencing and bunding to be erected around the site as part of this 
development shall be constructed in accordance with the details previously 
approved by the Mineral Planning Authority pursuant to condition 6 of 
planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in the decision notice dated 
15 December 2017) and shall be maintained and retained for the duration of 
the development. 
 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity 

 
Condition 12 references an approved site layout drawing which, given the 
changes proposed by this application, would be outdated.  The condition as 
currently cited reads as follows: 

 
The arrangements shown on the approved Drawing No. 3336 P07 dated 
July 2014 (received 1 September 2014) for the parking/turning/  
manoeuvring /loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times 
when the premises are in use. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the safety of users of the public highway and the 
safety of users of the site. 

 
Condition 16 sets out the permitted working hours for the site including HGV 
movements and states: 

 
The site shall only operate, including vehicle movements to and from the 
site, between the hours set out below: 

 
HGV deliveries 

 
 Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays Sundays, Bank 

Holidays and 
Public 

Holidays 
Phase 1 – construction of the 
site 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 2 – equipment 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Page 14



assembly and demobilisation 
Phase 2 – HGV deliveries 
during drilling operation 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 3 – HGV 
movements 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 
 

Operating Hours 
 
 Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays Sundays, Bank 

Holidays and 
Public 

Holidays 
Phase 1 – construction of the 
site 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 2 – equipment 
assembly and demobilisation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 2 – drilling operations 
only 

24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 3 – site preparation for 
production testing 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 3 – production testing 
(site only manned during 
normal working hours Monday 
to Friday, except for 
occasional monitoring visits 
over weekends). 

24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 
 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the surrounding area 
 
Condition 17 sets out the permitted noise level limits and states: 
 
Noise levels as a result of the development hereby permitted measured at a 
height of 1.5 metres at the boundary of the properties at the identified 
locations shall not exceed the limits set out below: 

 

Noise sensitive location 

Construction 
Noise Limit dB 

LAeq, 1hr 
(hours as 

specified in 
condition 17) 

Drilling 
Noise Limit 
dB LAeq, 

1hr 
(07:00 – 

23:00 hours) 

Drilling 
Noise Limit 
dB LAeq, 

1hr 
(23:00 – 

07:00 hours) 
Ellmore Farm  40 38 33 
Paddock View  42 41 40 

Page 15



Coppice House  42 41 40 
Station House  40 39 36 
The Pines  41 39 36 
The Gables  40 37 33 
The Bungalow  41 39 37 
The Willows  39 36 28 
Big Wood Caravan Park  39 36 28 
Eastgate  39 37 32 
Smithfield House  39 37 30 
 
 Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties 
  
Proposed Amendments  
 
5. Condition 3 lists the approved documents and plans which include details of 

the proposed site layout during the various phases of construction, drilling, 
production testing and restoration.  A planning statement and revised site 
layout drawings have been submitted by the applicant which identify the 
changes now sought and sets out the reasons for those changes.  These 
are summarised as follows: 

 
• Amendments sought in order to improve the performance of the well 

site during the construction, drilling and production testing stages; 
• The proposed amendments would enable the operator to manage 

potential protestor activity at the wellsite by improving security 
measures; 

• Proposed amendment so as to substitute the Bentomat geotextile clay 
liner (GCL) impermeable membrane for  a high-density polyethylene 
(HDPE) impermeable membrane; 

• Proposed removal of a surface water interceptor during construction 
stage; 

• Proposed removal of referenced lighting layouts (as details relating to 
lighting were subsequently approved by condition); 

• To extend the permitted hours relating to HGV deliveries and site 
operations between Monday and Friday; and 

• To correct the noise level figures applied at the North Kelsey wellsite, 
so they are consistent with the same standard limits used at the 
Biscathorpe well site. 

 
6. The revised details do not seek to extend the scope of the development 

permitted which remains for the exploration and evaluation of conventional 
oil and gas only.  The works would also continue to be carried out in 4 
separate phases with the changes to the approved plans simply made to 
reflect amendments to the site layout and aspects of the site construction 
materials.  The site phasing would therefore be as follows: 

 

Page 16



Phase 1: Construction of the Drill Site (approximately 6-7 weeks). This 
would involve the construction and laying out of the main compound site 
including construction of perimeter bunds, construction of containment ditch 
and bund, the laying of the HDPE impermeable membrane, replacing the 
proposed Bentomat clay liner  (refer to Plan 1) and installation of the well 
cellar and chamber. 

 
Plan 1 – Proposed Site Construction Sections 

 
Phase 2: Operational Phase (approximately 8 weeks). During this phase 
the drill rig and all associated plant and equipment would be brought into the 
site which includes on-site water tanks, pipe stores, mud and fuel tanks and 
staff accommodation.  Once commenced, drilling and associated operations 
would take place on a 24 hours per day, seven days per week basis over a 
period of up to six weeks (refer to Plan 2). 

 
Plan 2 – Proposed Site Layout during Phase 2 Operational Drilling 

Page 17



Phase 3: Operational Phase (testing) (approximately 28 weeks). If the 
drilling provides evidence of hydrocarbon, the well would then be completed 
and made safe and a wellhead installed at surface level.  Additional 
equipment including a beam pump, welfare unit/switchroom, generator, four 
fluid storage tanks, a compressor and two transfer/export pumps would be 
installed. An indication of the site set-up has been provided (refer to Plan 3). 

 
Plan 3 – Proposed Site Layout during Phase 3 Operational Testing 

 
Phase 4: Site Restoration (6 weeks to complete).  This phase would 
remain unchanged and involve filling the steel casing of the well with 
concrete, cut approximately 2 metres below the surface and capped with a 
steel plate.  All on-site structures would be removed as would the well cellar 
and sump lining.  Any remaining drilling mud and cutting waste would also 
be removed together with the pit liner and the perimeter ditch lining. It is 
proposed to re-grade and deep scarify the land in accordance with best 
agricultural practice.  The stored subsoil and topsoil would be loose spread 
over the regraded ground and the site would be re-contoured and restored 
to agricultural use. This phase would take place over a 6 week period.  

 
Site Security 
 
7. The approved plans show the layout of the site for each of the various 

phases of the development and include site security measures which 
include the provision of welfare cabins, fencing and lighting.  Following 
recommendations from Lincolnshire Police further measures are now being 
proposed which are considered necessary to ensure the safety of staff and 
contractors visiting the site.  These include the introduction of additional 
fencing and security gates around the site (which would also require 

Page 18



changes to details referenced by Conditions 6 and 12) along with the 
provision of two additional lighting columns/units and an additional mobile 
welfare unit near the entrance onto Smithfield Road for security personnel. 

 
8. Details relating to the sites lighting have previously been approved (pursuant 

to Condition 5) and those details gave particular emphasis to health and 
safety of those working within the site and were designed to minimise light 
spillage outside of the site. The approved details supersede those which 
were originally shown and listed on the lighting layout plans cited in 
Condition 3.  The applicant is therefore seeking to remove reference to 
those by amending Condition 3.  The permitted lighting details approved by 
Condition 5 would remain in force however it is now proposed to add a 
further two lighting columns to the site in order to illuminate the access road 
and therefore increased security. 

 
Surface Water Management 
 
9. Condition 4 referenced the need to comply with the Flood Risk Assessment 

which contained details of the controls to be adopted to manage surface 
water. The current assessment proposed that a surface water interceptor 
would be installed during construction stage of the development and would 
be retained throughout the development with waters being discharged to a 
nearby watercourse.  The applicant is no longer proposing to discharge 
waters off-site and instead would collect and retain these on site prior to 
being tankered off-site (as needed) for disposal elsewhere.  Given this 
change, the applicant no longer considers it necessary to install an 
interceptor and therefore proposes that the Flood Risk Assessment be 
updated/amended to reflect this. An addendum has therefore been 
submitted detailing the precise changes sought and it is proposed that this 
form part of the approved documents/details. 

 
Fencing  
 
10. Condition 6 requires a 1.2 metre high stock proof fence to be erected along 

the access track from Smithfield Road to the site compound. Following the 
discussions with Lincolnshire Police the applicant has been recommended 
to revisit the security provision and as a consequence is seeking to change 
the fencing and security gates at the site so that they provide emergency 
escape routes for personnel.  It is also proposed to erect a 2.4m high 
'Meshmaster' fence and gates on the access track by and at the site 
entrance so as to create an 'air-lock'. The design and height of the proposed 
gates and fencing at the access would be consistent with that already 
approved for the drilling site itself as illustrated in Plan 4. 

Page 19



 
Plan 4 – Proposed Access Track Layout 

 
Parking and Manoeuvring  
 
11. Condition 12 required that parking/turning/manoeuvring/loading/unloading of 

vehicles shall be available at all times in accordance with a specified layout.  
As a consequence of the need to improve security at the site the applicant 
seeks to introduce in an additional set of gates Plan 5. 

 
Plan 5 – Arrangement for parking etc. 
 

Hours of Work 
 
12. Condition 16 identifies the permitted hours of working for each phase of the 

development.  With the exception of Phase 2 (drilling operations) and Phase 
3 (production testing) which are permitted to operate 24 hours a day/seven 
days a week, the other hours are restricted to specified times. The applicant 
is seeking to amend the times specified for site operations between Monday 

Page 20



to Friday to those as set out below.  These changes would not extend to 
Saturdays, Sundays, Bank Holidays and Public Holidays. 

 
Phase Existing Mon-Fri Proposed Mon-Fri 
1 Site construction 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 
3 Preparation for 
testing 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 

4 Restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 
 
13. Similarly the applicant is seeking to amend the hours controlling HGV 

movements for each phase to those as illustrated below. 
 
Phase Existing 

Mon-Fri 
Proposed 
Mon-Fri 

Existing 
Saturday 

Proposed 
Saturday 

1 Site construction 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 No change 
2 Drilling 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 07:00 – 19:00 
4 Restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 No change 
 
14. The applicant states that these extended hours are required given the 

impact of the increased security checks that would be necessary and based 
on experience gained elsewhere.  The additional checks cause delays which 
affect the ability of the operator to meet the original schedule for the delivery 
of equipment and materials to the site.  

 
Noise  
 
15. Condition 17 identifies a number of sensitive receptors together with the 

predicted noise levels which the operations are required to comply with.  
The applicant is seeking to amend the condition so as to reduce the number 
of identified sensitive receptors referenced and to instead simply reference 
the nearest residential property to the site and the maximum permitted noise 
level. The applicant argues that by identifying 11 locations with precise noise 
limits as is currently the case makes the monitoring and enforcement of 
noise limits unnecessarily complicated.  Therefore rather than set limits at 
individual properties, some of which are further away from the site than the 
nearest receptor, it would be more practical to set a limit at the most noise- 
critical location as this would be the controlling factor for all noise sensitive 
receptors. 

 
16. In addition to the above, the applicant is also seeking to increase the noise 

level limits imposed for the construction phase of the development.  It is 
argued that the levels currently cited for each of the properties listed in the 
condition are low and unreasonable.  It is suggested that a maximum noise 
level for all properties should be increased to 50dB LAeq as this was 
considered acceptable at the Biscathorpe site (which is within the AONB) 
and therefore stricter limits are not justified at this location.  The existing 
noise levels limits for both the construction and drilling phases, along with 

Page 21



the revised levels now sought by the applicant, are set out below for 
comparison purposes. 

 
Nearest noise 
sensitive locations 
 

Construction Noise 
Limit dB LAeq, 1hr  

Drilling Noise Limit 
dB LAeq, 1hr 

(07:00 – 23:00 
hours) 

Drilling Noise Limit 
dB LAeq, 1hr 

(23:00 – 07:00 
hours) 

Existing Coppice 
House 

42 41 40 

Existing Paddock 
View 

42 41 39 

Proposed 50 42 42 
     
Site and Surroundings 
 
17. The application site lies approximately 1.3 km north of Moortown, 2.8km 

south east of North Kelsey and 4.5km south west of Caistor.  The site is 
accessed off Smithfield Road (Photograph 1) which is a single track road 
with a number of passing places along its length.  An area of land at the 
junction of Smithfield Road and the B1434 is also included within the 
application site. 

 
Photograph 1 – Smithfield Road from the junction with the B1434 

 
18. The site itself is agricultural land (Photograph 2).  The surrounding area is 

predominantly in agricultural use with trees and hedges along field 
boundaries ranging from sparse to dense planting.  Immediately to the south 
of the proposed access track is a ditch and to the south of this ditch is a line 
of trees and an existing access track. 

 

Page 22



 
Photograph 2 – site of proposed exploratory wellsite 

 
19. A railway line lies to the east of the application site and beyond this the 

landscape becomes rolling hills with the presence of a number of 
telecommunications towers.  The southern boundary of the site is lined by 
mature hedgerows and trees.  The western boundary has a number of 
individual trees, whereas the northern and eastern boundaries are 
completely open, being part of a wider field. 

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
Planning Policy Context 
 
20. The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) sets out the 

Government's planning policies for England.  It is a material consideration in 
determination of planning applications and adopts a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development.  A number of paragraphs are of particular 
relevance to this application as summarised: 

 
Paragraphs 7 to 13 – presumption in favour of sustainable development and 
core principles; 

 
Paragraphs 38 to 50 – confirm that the planning system is a plan-led system 
and that application must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Local 
Planning Authorities shall also apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  It also confirms the position regarding the status of existing 
and emerging Local Plans and their policies and that due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing and emerging plans according to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF and their stage of advancement to 
adoption; 

 
Paragraphs 54 to 55 – advises on the use of planning conditions and states 
these should only be sought where they are necessary, directly related to 
the development and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development; 

Page 23



 
Paragraphs 108 to 111 – advises that development should consider impacts 
on the highway network and highway safety and seek to mitigate impacts to 
an acceptable degree. 

 
Paragraphs 155 to 165 – meeting the challenge of flood risk; 

 
Paragraphs 170 to 183 – seeks to conserve and enhance the natural 
environment; prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and protect general 
amenity, prevent adverse impacts as a result of noise pollution; 

 
Paragraphs 184 to 202 – requires that the significance of heritage assets is 
taken into consideration, including any impacts on their settings.  
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of 
heritage or development within its setting.  Where a development would lead 
to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage 
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the 
proposal; 

 
Paragraphs 203 to 209 – directs planning authorities to facilitate the 
sustainable use of minerals by ensuring sufficient supply and no 
unacceptable adverse impacts. 

 
21. In addition to the NPPF, in March 2014, the Government published the web-

based Planning Policy Guidance (PPG).  The PPG also sets out the overall 
requirements for minerals sites that include exploration for hydrocarbons 
and provide direction in relation to assessing environmental impacts such as 
noise, light and visual amenity.  The guidance also quantifies reasonable 
noise limits for operations during the day/evening [not exceed 55dB(A) 
LAeq, 1h (free field)] and night [not exceed 42dB(A) LAeq,1h (free field)].  
Temporary daytime noise limits of up to 70dB(A) LAeq 1h (free field) for 
periods up to 8 weeks in a year at specified noise-sensitive properties 
should be considered to facilitate essential site preparation and restoration 
work. 

 
22. For avoidance of doubt, it should be noted that on 6 March 2019 a 

judgement in the case of Stephenson vs SoS MHCLG [2019] EWHC 519 
(Admin) found in favour of the appellant and as a consequence on 14 May 
2019 a Court Order was issued and in accordance with the terms of the 
Court Order, paragraph 209(a) of the NPPF (2018) has be quashed.  
However, Ministerial Written Statement HCWS1586 advises that Chapter 17 
on 'Facilitating the Sustainable Use of Minerals' remains unchanged and 
extant and that for the purposes of the NPPF, hydrocarbon development is 
considered to be a mineral resource.                                           

 
Local Plan Context 
 
23. Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and 

Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) – the key policies of 
relevance in this case are as follows (summarised): 

Page 24



 
Policy M9 (Energy Minerals) states that planning permission will be granted 
for exploration, appraisal and/or production of conventional and 
unconventional hydrocarbons provided that proposals accord with all 
relevant Development Management Policies set out in the Plan. 

 
Policy DM1 (Presumption in favour of sustainable development) states that 
when considering development proposals, the County Council will take a 
positive approach.  Planning applications that accord with the policies in this 
Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

 
Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not 
generate unacceptable adverse impacts to occupants of nearby dwellings or 
other sensitive receptors as a result of a range of different factors/criteria 
(e.g. noise, dust, vibrations, visual intrusion, etc). 

 
Policy DM6 (Impact on Landscape and Townscape) states that planning 
permission will be granted provided that due regard has been given to the 
likely impact of the proposed development on the landscape, including 
landscape character, valued or distinctive landscape features and elements 
and important views.  If necessary additional design, landscaping, planting 
and screening will also be required and where new planting is required it will 
be subject to a minimum 10 year maintenance period. 

 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development involving transport by road where the highway 
network is of, or will be made up to, an appropriate standard and 
arrangements for site access and traffic would not have an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, flow, residential amenity or environment. 

 
Policy DM15 (Flooding and Flood Risk) states that proposals will need to 
demonstrate that they can be developed without increasing the risk of 
flooding both to the site and the surrounding area during and following the 
operations. 

 
Policy DM16 (Water Resources) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where they would not have an 
unacceptable impact on surface or ground waters and due regard is given to 
water conservation and efficiency. 

 
Policy R1 (Restoration and Aftercare) states that proposals must 
demonstrate that restoration will be of high quality and carried out at the 
earliest opportunity; and 

 
Policy R2 (After-use) requires that the proposed after-use should be 
designed in a way that is not detrimental to the local economy and 
conserves and where possible enhances the landscape character, natural 
and historic environment of the area. 

Page 25



 
24. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) (2017) – the key policies of 

relevance in this case are as follows (summarised): 
 

Policy LP2 (Spatial strategy and settlement hierarchy) identifies the site in 
the countryside; 

 
Policy LP9 (Health and wellbeing) states that development must 
demonstrate satisfactory mitigation measures; 

 
Policy LP13 (Transport) states that development must contribute towards an 
efficient and safe transport network; 

 
Policy LP14 (Water Resources and Flood Risk) states that development 
must not increase the risk of flooding or adverse impacts on water 
resources; 

 
Policy LP17 (Landscape) states that proposals must seek to protect and 
enhance the landscape value and character of the area; 

 
Policy LP21 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) states that proposed 
development should seek to protect, manage and enhance habitat networks; 
and 

 
Policy LP26 (Design and amenity) states that development must make 
effective and efficient use of land and should minimise adverse impacts on 
amenity. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
25. (a) Neighbouring County Council Member, Councillor L Strange – is a 

Member of the Planning & Regulation Committee and so reserves his 
position until the meeting. 

 
 (b) South Kelsey and Moortown Parish Council – objects to the proposed 

increase in fence height from 1.2 metres to 2.4 metres; the proposed 
increase in noise thresholds, and; the proposed increase in operating 
hours. 

 
 (c) North Kelsey Parish Council – object to the increase in noise 

thresholds, increased operating hours and consider the road is not 
suitable for increased traffic and the potential for accidents at the 
crossroads. 

 
 (d) Holton le Moor Parish Meeting – commented that the residents of 

Holton le Moor expressed concern regarding climate change and 
considered the effects of increased vehicle movements and increased 
hours of operation during the construction and operational phases were 
likely to have the following adverse impacts on the village stating: 

 

Page 26



• A number of the properties over 100 years old are susceptible to 
damage from the effects of vibration from heavy vehicles using 
the B1434; and 

• Increased vehicles and hours of work are likely to affect the 
amenity of residents and their enjoyment of their property. 

 
It is added that changes are proposed to the impermeable membrane 
and therefore seek reassurance that the necessary expert opinion be 
sought as to its appropriateness and that its integrity be monitored. 

  
With regard to surface water management, the Council asks that a 
more environmentally sustainable method for the disposal of waste 
water be considered rather than tankering off site to be disposed of 
elsewhere.  

 
Finally, the applicant is seeking to increase the noise levels but has 
failed to demonstrate why this is necessary and that any increased 
noise would have a detrimental effect on the amenity of the rural area 
and impact residents and visitors within the vicinity of the site.  The 
Council therefore asks that the Committee limit noise levels to those 
previously approved and are monitored regularly. 

 
 (e) Environment Agency (EA) – has commented that the proposed 

variations include improvements that were carried out on the 
Biscathorpe oil site and which are more protective to the environment 
and so meet their approval. Therefore they have no objections and no 
additional comments to make. 

 
 (f) Environmental Health (West Lindsey District Council) – stated that 

having considered the information provided and the noise assessment 
report previously submitted have no further comments to make and no 
objections.  Separately a recommendation has been made to attach an 
Informative, should planning permission be granted, with regard to the 
site being within a 250m area of potential contaminative use (Railway) 
which may have led to localised ground contamination. 

 
 (g) Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) 

– initially requested that some amendments be made to the revised 
drawings so as to ensure the new gates and fencing are positioned on 
the line of the highway boundary and that a protruding barrier is omitted 
as it was shown mounted within the public highway.  It was also 
commented that the additional vehicle trips associated with the 
revisions made are acceptable. 

 
Following the comments made, the plans were subsequently revised 
and submitted to reflect the changes sought. 

 
 (h) Caistor Town Council - wish to maintain its objection to the extension of 

the drilling exploration by reason of its disturbance to the 
neighbourhood through noise and vehicle movements. 

Page 27



 
26. The following bodies/persons were also consulted on the application on the 

10 May 2019 but no response or comments had been received within the 
statutory consultation period or by the time this report was prepared: 

 
Local County Council Member, Councillor A Turner 
Network Rail 
Anglian Water Services Ltd 
Lincolnshire Public Health 
Lincolnshire Police 
Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust 
Ministry of Defence (Safeguarding) 

 
27.  The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site entrance 

and three other locations including the junction of Smithfield Road and the 
B1434, the junction of B1434 and Easthall Road and the crossroads in 
Moortown.  It has also been advertised in the local press (Lincolnshire Echo 
on Thursday 16 May 2019) and 21 letters of notification were sent to the 
nearest neighbouring residents. 

 
28. 42 representations from 38 residential addresses had been received by the 

time this report was prepared. A summary of the objections received is as 
follows: 

 
• The application is very different to the original 2014 application and 

represents a significant expansion of the original proposal; 
• Climate Change policies should be adhered to with the reduction in the 

production of fossil fuel, due to the irreversible damage done to the 
biosphere.  It is recommended that the applicant invests in 
renewable/green technology; 

• The application represents large-scale industrialisation of a rural area 
especially in close proximity to the Viking Way and the Wolds; 

• The introduction of eight foot high fencing contributes to an already 
unacceptable visual impact on the area.  The are no proposals for 
planting to screen the site; 

• Increasing hours will result in disturbance to local residents for longer 
periods including those living on the route to the site; 

• Increased noise levels over and above those already permitted would 
be unacceptable, the area is backed by hills creating an amphitheatre 
that increases the effects of noise and a new noise assessment should 
be required.  The residents in the area around the junction of Smithfield 
Road and B1434 were not taken into account in the existing noise 
assessments; 

• The noise levels and times proposed are not consistent with the 
Planning Practice Guidance recommendations and a recommendation 
that a noise  standard that conforms to ISO 226:2003 should be 
adopted; 

• Vibration from the continuous drilling will disturb local families and 
affect their ability to sleep and affect their health and wellbeing; 

Page 28



• The impacts of dust, the plumes of fumes of diesel generators and the 
escape of Volatile Organic Compounds arising from the proposed 
operations and the consequential adverse impacts on human health 
has not been addressed; 

• Increased lighting would result in unacceptable light spill in an area 
noted for dark skies, would have an adverse impact on local residents 
and could cause distraction to drivers using Smithfield Road and the 
Lighting Mitigation Assessment is flawed and even where reduced in 
number they would still produce significant light pollution outside of the 
drilling site; 

• Highways – Smithfield Road, especially at the junction with the B1434 
and the B1434 itself, particularly where it passes through Holton le 
Moor, is unsuitable for the proposed increased number and size of the 
lorries using the route to the site.  Particular concern, with regard to the 
formation of potholes, damage to verges, vibration damage to property 
and highway safety, was expressed; 

• There is an significant increase in the number of vehicles making extra 
deliveries to set up the site (particularly the extra security fencing) and 
the proposal to tanker waste water away from the site all of which are 
considered unnecessary and unacceptable; 

• Concern that the HDPE liner along is not sufficient protection to stop 
pollution escaping the site; 

• Proposed fencing interferes with the IDB Drain; 
• Wildlife will be adversely impacted by the increased hours of work, 

noise levels, lighting and overall activity at the site, insufficient 
consideration has been given to the impacts on the ecology of the area; 

• Reassurance is needed that boreholes are properly filled in and not 
merely covered to prevent children falling in; and 

• There is insufficient evaluation of the cumulative effects when 
considered with the application for additional security at the site.  

 
29. Two representations were received in support of the application stating: 
 

• that the proposal was reasonably small-scale and similar to other 
oil/gas sites already operating in the county; and  

• pleased to see the safeguarding measure of replacing the Bentomat 
liner with an HDPE liner. 

 
District Council’s Observations 
 
30. West Lindsey District Council (Planning Authority) – have no objections to 

the development. 
 
Conclusions 
 
31. The development authorised by the original planning permission was 

granted in December 2014 and has now been lawfully implemented and the 
development commenced.  The principle of the development in this location 
has previously been assessed and considered acceptable and so too have 

Page 29



various measures that would be adopted to ensure that any potential 
adverse impacts are ameliorated and mitigated and considered consistent 
with Policies M9 and DM1of the CSDMP.  However, the applicant is now 
proposing to change, remove or make amendments to some of the 
permitted operations. 

 
32. The application is seeking to vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of 

Planning Permission Ref: 137302 to amend the site layout, the management 
of surface water run-off, the materials for the tertiary containment system, 
hours of deliveries and operations and security provision at land to the east 
of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen. 

 
33. As a Section 73A application, the Mineral Planning Authority is only required 

to consider the question of the proposed amended/varied condition(s) and 
so is not required to reconsider the principle or acceptability of the 
development itself. In determining this application it would therefore only 
normally be necessary to consider whether the proposed amendments in 
relation to the approved development are justified.  Since the grant of the 
planning permission in 2018 there has been a change to the NPPF and in 
carrying out this assessment, and in line with the direction given in 
Ministerial Written Statement HCWS1586 the relevant paragraphs contained 
within the NPPF and the PPG have been considered where material. 

 
Issues Raised by Respondents 
 
34. A number of representations have been received which have repeated 

concerns and issues that were raised and addressed when the development 
was re-considered and granted permission in 2018.  These representations 
include questions over the need for the development of onshore oil and gas 
production and their contribution to climate change and concerns about the 
potential adverse impacts of the development on the environment and 
residents health.  

 
35. As stated previously, the development authorised by the permission has 

been lawfully implemented and as a Section 73A application it is not 
therefore normally necessary to reconsider the need or principle of the 
development again.  Notwithstanding, this application seeks to amend 
certain elements of the approved development that may have impacts over 
and above those considered acceptable when the proposed development 
was previously evaluated.  As a consequence the relevant issues expressed 
through the representations received are as follows: 

 
• Traffic/Vibration; 
• Hours of Operation/Deliveries; 
• Noise/Vibration; 
• Lighting; 
• Visual Impact; 
• Wildlife; and  
• Pollution. 

 

Page 30



Highway and Highway Safety 
 
36. A number of representations and concerns have been raised regarding an 

increased number of HGV movements associated with the proposed 
development and their effect on highway infrastructure and highway safety.  
Many of these consider that insufficient information has been provided and 
that a new Transport Assessment should have been provided as additional 
movements would now be required which are directly attributable to specific 
changes sought (e.g. more materials will be required for construction in 
Phase 1 and again during Phase 4 and the proposed tankering of waters off-
site would increase movements. Concerns have also been expressed 
regarding the vibration impacts of transportation on older properties on the 
B1434. 

 
37. Whilst the above objections are noted, the Highways Officer has considered 

the information provided and whilst additional vehicle trips may arise they 
are considered acceptable and would not pose any greater adverse impacts 
in terms of the highway capacity or safety and therefore the revised 
proposals would not conflict with the aims and objectives of the NPPF and 
Policy DM14 of the CSDMP nor compromise Policy LP13 of the CLLP. 

 
Hours of Operation 
 
38. In part linked to the concerns expressed in relation to traffic movements, 

concerns have also been raised regarding the proposed amended hours of 
operation which residents feel would be likely to cause unacceptable 
disturbance in respect of noise and vibration, to residents over a longer 
period each day.  Whilst it has already been considered acceptable for 
drilling and testing operations to be carried out 24 hours a day/seven days a 
week all other operations are currently restricted.   

 
39. The applicant has proposed to change the hours cited for Phases 1, 3 and 4 

so as to allow site operations to finish at 1900 hours rather than 1730 hours 
Monday to Friday. Similarly it is proposed to extend the hours for HCV 
movements during Phases 1, 2 and 4 from 1730 hours to 1900 hours 
Monday to Friday and for Phase 2 Saturday to also allow movements to 
finish at 1900 hours rather than 1300 hours. All other restrictions would 
remain unchanged and therefore no operations (excepting drilling and 
testing) would be permitted on Saturdays, Sundays, Bank/Public Holidays.  
The extended hours are sought as experience gained elsewhere has 
indicated that longer security checks at the site have caused delays in 
turning around deliveries and thereby impacted on vehicle schedules.  
These delays consequently also have potential implications on the overall 
timeframe for carrying out and completing the operations within the 
prescribed timeframe. 
 

40. Whilst the objections of local residents are noted, no objections have been 
received from the Highway Officer regarding the impact of additional traffic 
and noise conditions would continue to apply on the site activities which 
would ensure that noise arising from any extended site activities fall within 

Page 31



acceptable limits. No objections have been received from the Environmental 
Health Officer or District Council either and therefore the extended hours are 
considered acceptable and unlikely to have any material adverse increased 
impact.   

 
Noise  
 
41. The applicant is seeking to revise and simplify the existing noise condition 

which currently cites specified noise levels at 11 noise sensitive receptors.  
The applicant argues that the current condition is unnecessarily complicated 
and that it is only really necessary to reference the two nearest residential 
properties and cites the required noise level limits to be met at these 
properties.  This is because properties further away from the nearest 
properties would experience noise levels lower than those closest to the site 
and therefore it is not necessary to specify exact limits for those further 
afield. The applicant proposes that the condition therefore be revised and 
that the maximum noise level of 42dB LAeq be applied for the night-time 
operations for all properties and that the daytime construction phase noise 
level is increased from 42dB LAeq to 50dB LAeq. 

 
42. The Environmental Health Officer has raised no objection to the proposed 

amendment however a number of representations have been received 
which express concerns that any increase in noise levels would cause 
unacceptable disturbance particularly when considered in conjunction with 
the increase hours of operations and deliveries. 

 
43. Having taken into account the information contained in the application and 

the comments received, your Officers accept and agree that the current 
wording of the noise condition is overly complicated and could be simplified. 
The purpose of the condition is to ensure that the noise experienced at the 
nearest noise sensitive receptors fall within acceptable limits (as set out in 
national guidance).  The current condition however includes references to a 
number of properties and cites noise levels that are not strictly necessary in 
order to achieve this purpose. The noise levels cited in the condition are 
based on the findings of the noise assessment which supported the original 
application and which took into account background noise levels and the 
noise arising from the proposed operations and activities. That assessment 
concluded that noise levels during the construction and drilling operations 
(both daytime and night-time) would not exceed 42dB LAeq at the nearest 
noise sensitive property. Given this, the wording of the condition could be 
simplified so as to remove reference to properties further away from the site 
as the noise levels experienced at those properties would be lower than 
those closest to the site. Removing reference to these properties would not 
therefore reduce any existing protection afforded to them or weaken the 
enforceability of the condition.  Whilst Officers therefore agree a simplified 
condition would be reasonable they do not agree to the justification or basis 
given for seeking to increase the daytime limit to 50db LAeq (i.e. that this is 
the limit set at another site and so should be applied here). The noise 
assessment has demonstrated that the noise levels from the 
construction/daytime operations would fall below 42dB LAeq and therefore 

Page 32



there is no reason to apply a higher limit in this case. Therefore whilst it is 
agreed and recommended that the condition be simplified, the noise limits 
cited should not be increased over and above 42dB LAeq for all operations - 
daytime and night-time.  Therefore a revised condition is recommended but 
maximum noise limits should be set at 42dB LAeq, at the boundary of the 
two closest noise sensitive properties, namely Coppice House and 
Smithfield House.  
 

44. Finally, in addition to the above revision, it is also recommended that an 
additional condition be imposed which would require the applicant to carry 
out a programme of noise monitoring.  This requirement will ensure that the 
noise levels experienced comply with those which were predicted in the 
original assessment and therefore that the development does not have any 
adverse noise impacts as was predicted. 
 

Lighting 
 
45. The proposed development includes the introduction of two additional flood-

lighting towers.  These are identified by the applicant as being necessary to 
ensure safety and security along the access track and at the entrance off 
Smithfield Road.  Concern has been expressed that this will result in light 
spillage beyond the boundary of the site and light pollution.  Although the 
Environmental Health Officer (West Lindsey) has not recommended that a 
condition be attached requiring a light mitigation assessment, your Officer 
recommends that a scheme in relation to the additional security lighting be 
secured prior to commencement of Phase 2 (equipment assembly).  This 
would give Officers an opportunity to ensure that the lighting does not have 
any increased adverse impact over and above that already accepted.  All 
other lighting at the site would remain as permitted and unchanged from that 
which has already been approved. 

 
Overall Amenity 
 
46. Having considered matters relating to hours of operation, noise, lighting and 

the proposed amendments and additional condition, your Officers are 
satisfied that should the application be granted permission the revised 
development would still be consistent with the aims and objectives of the 
NPPF, Policy DM3 of the CSDMP and would not compromise or conflict 
Policy LP9 of the CLLP which seeks to ensure development that 
demonstrates satisfactory mitigation measures in relation to the health and 
wellbeing of local residents. 

 
Visual Impact 
 
47. With regard to landscape impacts, the proposed development has already 

been assessed with regard to the installation of the drill rig and it is 
acknowledged that it is likely to have a significant impact during day and 
night, however, there are no proposals for the construction, operation and 
demobilisation of the rig to continue longer than the period that was 
accepted when the original application was approved (e.g. approximately 8 

Page 33



weeks).  The revisions sought by this application  would amend the bunds 
and fencing by extending the perimeter bunds and replace the approved 
stock fencing on the access road with a 2.4 metre high weld mesh and 
gates. Representations have suggested that the extra fencing and gates on 
the access track and entrance would be visually unacceptable and intrusive.  
Whilst these comments are noted, when considered in the context of the 
existing site, I am satisfied that the fencing and gates are acceptable. The 
access road route is generally defined by a mature line of native trees grown 
to heights exceeding 8 metres and so only glimpses of the fencing would be 
afforded from the nearest residential properties.  All other aspects of the 
development are generally unchanged and as a consequence the landscape 
and visual impacts of this development would be no greater than that which 
were accepted previously.  I am therefore satisfied that there would be no 
long term adverse impact on landscape character as a result of this proposal 
and so the development would continue to comply with the NPPF and 
Policies DM6, R1 and R2 of the CSDMP and would not conflict with nor 
compromise Policies LP2, LP26 and LP17 which seek through design to 
protect and enhance the landscape value, character and biodiversity in the 
open countryside. 

 
Wildlife 
 
48. Comments have also been received with regard to potential impacts on 

wildlife.  Again such matters were considered at the time of the original 
application and conditions were imposed to address and mitigate or 
minimise any such impacts.  These included the need to carry out an 
ecological survey in advance of the commencement of the development and 
to secure mitigation/compensation measures in the event of the loss of 
habitat.  A further ecological survey has been completed (2018) and the 
details and schemes previously approved pursuant to the conditions would 
continue to apply to the development if permission for these changes is 
granted.  Notwithstanding, the proposed amendments to hours of 
operations, lighting and noise are not considered to represent a significant 
increase in impact on wildlife and as a consequence the development would 
continue to comply with the NPPF and Policies R1 and R2 of the CSDMP 
and would not conflict with nor compromise Policy LP21 which seek to 
protect and enhance biodiversity. 

 
Pollution 
 
49. Concern has been expressed regarding the management of waste water 

and potential pollution of ground water and water courses, given the 
proposed amendments being sought as part of this application.  The site 
layout has been designed to ensure that there would be a separation of 
surface water and wastes arising from the development as well as any water 
that may become contaminated with pollutants.  The Environment Agency 
has raised no objection to this application and supports the proposed 
improvements that would provide for a more protective environment.  The 
Environmental Health Officer (West Lindsey) has identified that the site lies 
within a contaminated land buffer zone relating to the Railway and has 

Page 34



requested that an Informative be attached to a decision should the 
permission be granted advising the operators of their obligation to protect 
their employees during the development of the site.  An Environmental 
Permit would place additional controls and conditions on the operations in 
respect of pollution control and the safe disposal of all wastes.  Taking this 
into account, I am satisfied that the proposed replacement of the Bentomat 
liner with an HDPE liner and the removal of interceptor with discharge to a 
watercourse, replacing it with a collection point for tankering collected 
surface water for disposal off site, would not pose a risk to water resources 
and therefore would comply with the objectives of the NPPF and Policy 
DM16 of the CSDMP and Policy LP14 of the CLLP. 

 
Human Rights 
 
50. The proposed development has been considered against Human Rights 

implications especially with regard to Article 8 – right to respect for private 
and family life and Protocol 1, Article 1 – protection of property and 
balancing the public interest and well – being of the community within these 
rights and the Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 

51. Finally, although Section 73 applications are commonly referred to as 
applications to “amend” or “vary” conditions they result in the grant of a new 
planning permission. Therefore, and for clarity and the avoidance of any 
doubt, it is recommended that the decision notice be issued with a 
comprehensive set of conditions which recites and updates (where relevant) 
the conditions that were originally included and attached to the previous 
planning permission. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 December 

2020 and by the date all portable buildings, plant and machinery associated 
with the use hereby permitted shall have been removed, the well capped 
and the land returned to its previous use as agricultural land. 

 
Reason: To provide for the completion of the exploratory operations in the 
interests of the amenity of the area. 

 
2.  This permission (being granted under Section 73A of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990, as amended) has effect from the date of this decision 
notice as the development subject of planning permission W97/131925/14 
has been implemented and therefore commenced. 

 
Reason: To comply with Section 73A of The Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). 

 

Page 35



3.  Except as otherwise required by other conditions attached to this permission 
the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the following documents and drawings: 

 
Documents 

 
Ref: 20271/A5/P6/VY/SO Rev 02 – 'Planning and Sustainability Statement' 
received 29 December 2017 as amended by Addendum to Planning and 
Sustainability Statement received 17 April 2019; 
Ref: Appendix 1 July 2016 – 'Site Closure and Restoration' received 29 
December 2017; 
Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Geology, Flood Risk and Pollution 
Control' received 1 September 2014; 
Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Transport & Traffic' received 1 
September 2014; 
Report number: 2636.01/ifb – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise 
Emissions' received 1 September 2014; 
Ref: 2636.02 – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions – Additional 
Information' received 3 December 2014; and 

 
Drawings 

 
Ref: 3336 P01 Site Location Plan (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 P02 Site of Application (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-03 - General Layout Plan (received 12 June 2019); 
Ref: 3336 P04 Access Track – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-05 Access Track – Proposed Layout (received 12 June 
2019); 
Ref: 3336 P06 Proposed Site – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 
2014); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-07 Proposed Site – Construction Mode (received 17 
April 2019); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-08 Proposed Site – Drilling Mode (received 17 April 
2019); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-10 Proposed Site – Testing Mode (Indicative) (received 
17 April 2019); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-12 Section A-A Section through Track (received 17 April 
2019); 
Ref: 3336 P13 Rev A Proposed Sections Drilling Mode (received 1 
September 2014); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-14 Site Construction Sections (received 17 April 2019); 
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-15 Sightlines & Site Entrance Details (received 12 June 
2019); 
Ref: 3336 P19 Cabin Plans and Elevations (received 1 September 2014); 
Ref: 3336 T05 Existing Layby on Smithfield Road Upgrade Details (received 
17 November 2014);  
Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-16 Proposed Access & Egress at Site Entrance 
(received 12 June 2019); and 

Page 36



Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA17 – Proposed Site Retention Mode (received 17 April 
2019) 

 
Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to monitor and control the 
development. 

 
4.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the approved Flood Risk Assessment dated 20 August 2014 received (1 
September 2014) as amended by 'Addendum to Assessment of Geology, 
Flood Risk and Pollution Control' date stamped received 17 April 2019 and 
shall be maintained and retained for the duration of the development. 

 
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage/disposal of 
surface water from the site. 

 
Amenity 
 
Lighting 
 
5.  The lighting to be employed as part of this development shall be 

implemented and carried out in accordance with the details previously 
approved by the Mineral Planning Authority pursuant to condition 5 of 
planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in the decision notice dated 
21 December 2017) and shall be implemented in full and be maintained and 
retained for the duration of the development. 

 
Security Lighting 
 
6. Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site (Phase 2) 

hereby permitted, a full security lighting scheme, including details of light 
spillage and all mitigation measures shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.  The lighting shall be maintained 
and retained in accordance with the approved details for so long as security 
is required or on completion of Phase 4 whichever may be earlier.   

 
7. The fencing and bunding to be erected around the site as part of this 

development shall be constructed in accordance with the details Drawing 
No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-20 'Access Track Fence Layout Plan' date stamped 
received 11 June 2019 and Drawing No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-21 'Proposed Site – 
Fence Layout Plan' date stamped received 17 April 2019 and shall be 
maintained and retained for the duration of the development. 

 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity. 
 

Ecology 
 
8. Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site, bird and 

bat boxes shall be provided in the vicinity of the well site as recommended in 
the Updated Ecological Appraisal document (originally approved pursuant to 
condition 7 of planning permission W97/131925/14 and confirmed by the 

Page 37



decision notice dated 15 December 2017).  Following the completion of the 
development and restoration of the site a barn owl box shall also be erected 
within the site in a location to be agreed with the land owner. 

 
Reason:  To ensure the ecological and biodiversity enhancements 
previously approved are secured and carried out as part of the development. 

 
Archaeology 
 
9. In relation to archaeology: 
 

Part 1 
The scheme of archaeological investigation must only be undertaken in 
accordance with the details previously approved by the Mineral Planning 
Authority pursuant to condition 8 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as 
set out in the decision notice dated 15 December 2017). 

 
Part 2 
The archaeological site work must be undertaken only in full accordance 
with the approved written scheme referred to above. The applicant will notify 
the Mineral Planning Authority of the intention to commence at least 
fourteen days before the start of archaeological work in order to facilitate 
adequate monitoring arrangements. No variation shall take place without 
prior consent of the Mineral Planning Authority. 

 
Part 3 
A report of the archaeologist’s findings shall be submitted to the Mineral 
Planning Authority and the Historic Environment Record Officer at 
Lincolnshire County Council within three months of the works hereby given 
consent being commenced unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral 
Planning Authority; and the condition shall not be discharged until the 
archive of all archaeological work undertaken hitherto has been deposited 
with the County Museum Service, or another public depository willing to 
receive it. 

 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory arrangements are made for the 
investigation, retrieval and recording of any archaeological interest. 

 
Highway Network and Safety 
 
10. The vehicular access onto Smithfield Road shall be retained in accordance 

with the details previously approved by the Mineral Planning Authority 
pursuant to condition 9 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in 
the decision notice dated 15 December 2017) and maintained at all times for 
duration of the development. 

 
11. At the cessation of the development hereby permitted any 

structural/constructional damage caused to Smithfield Road between the 
B1434 junction and the site access by vehicles carrying out the development 
shall be made good to the satisfaction of the highway authority to ensure 

Page 38



that where such damage has occurred the carriageway and the verges are 
restored to no lesser structural/constructional standard than they were prior 
to the development commencing. 

 
12. The vehicular access shall incorporate 10 metres radii tangential to the 

nearside edge of the carriageway of Smithfield Road and the minimum width 
of the access shall be 5 metres. 

 
13. The arrangements shown on the approved Drawing No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-07 

date stamped received 17 April 2019 for the 
parking/turning/manoeuvring/loading/ unloading of vehicles shall be 
available at all times when the premises are in use. 

 
14. At all times HGV deliveries are hereby permitted to visit the site, except 

during the period of production testing, a banksman shall be used to control 
the access to and egress from the site at the junction with Smithfield Road. 

 
15. Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site, the 

temporary signage previously approved by the Mineral Planning Authority 
pursuant to condition16 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out 
in the decision notice dated 15 December 2017) shall be erected at the 
junction of Smithfield Road and the B1434. All signage shall thereafter be 
maintained and retained for the duration of the development. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the safety of users of the public highway and the 
safety of users of the site. 

 
16. No site preparation works involving the destruction or removal of vegetation 

shall be undertaken during the months March to August inclusive, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To protect breeding birds during the nesting season. 

 
17. The site shall only operate, including vehicle movements to and from the 

site, between the hours set out below: 
 
HGV deliveries 
 
 Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays Sundays, Bank 

Holidays and 
Public 

Holidays 
Phase 1 – construction of the 
site 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 2 – equipment 
assembly and demobilisation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 2 – HGV deliveries 
during drilling operation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 3 – HGV 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Page 39



movements 
Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 none 
 
Operating Hours 
 
 Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays Sundays, Bank 

Holidays and 
Public 

Holidays 
Phase 1 – construction of the 
site 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 2 – equipment 
assembly and demobilisation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 2 – drilling operations 
only 

24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 3 – site preparation for 
production testing 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 3 – production testing 
(site only manned during 
normal working hours Monday 
to Friday, except for 
occasional monitoring visits 
over weekends). 

24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 13:00 none 
 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the surrounding area. 
 
18. Noise levels as a result of the development hereby permitted shall not 

exceed 42dB Laeq, 1hr free field at any time when measured at a height of 
1.5 metres at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive properties those 
being Coppice House and Smithfield House. 

 
Noise control and monitoring 
 
19.  Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site (Phase 2) 

hereby permitted, a detailed noise monitoring scheme shall be submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the mineral planning authority. The scheme shall 
include the locations for noise monitoring to be carried out commencing from 
the start of Phase 2 operations.  Noise monitoring shall thereafter be carried 
out in accordance with the approved noise monitoring scheme and the 
results of noise monitoring shall be made available to the Mineral Planning 
Authority within 5 days of commencement of monitoring. For avoidance of 
doubt noise monitoring shall commence within 12 hours of Phase 2 - 
equipment assembly commencing. 

 
20. In the event that the noise monitoring scheme (approved pursuant to 

condition 19) indicates that noise levels have exceeded the maximum 
permitted noise level, operations shall cease within 12 hours and until such 

Page 40



time that further noise mitigation measures which shall be firstly approved in 
writing by the mineral planning authority have been installed and employed 
within the site. 

 
21. All plant and machinery shall be adequately maintained and silenced in 

accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations at all times. 
 

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties. 
 
Informatives 
 
Attention is drawn to: 
 
(i)  Letter from Environment Agency dated 13 October 2014; 
(ii)  Comments from Highways dated 19 November 2014; 
(iii) E-mail from Jan Allen, Lincolnshire County Council Historic Environment 

dated 19 November 2014; 
(iv) Decision Notice W97/131952/14 dated 15 December 2017 Condition 16 – 

The design and size of the signs shall conform to the Traffic Signs 
Regulations and General Directions 2016 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/traffic-signs-signals-and-
roadmarkings; and 

(v)  E-mail from Environmental Health, West Lindsey District Council dated 7 
June 2019 relating to contaminated land; 

(vi)  In dealing with this application the Mineral Planning Authority has worked 
with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner by seeking further 
information to address issues identified and processed the application 
efficiently so as to prevent any unnecessary delay.  This approach ensures 
the application is handled in a positive way to foster the delivery of 
sustainable development which is consistent with the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and as required by Article 35(2) of the 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)(England) 
Order 2015. 

 
Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/traffic-signs-signals-and-roadmarkings
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/traffic-signs-signals-and-roadmarkings


Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application 
Files: W97/131952/14;   
137302 and 139426 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Lancaster 
House, 36 Orchard Street, Lincoln, LN1 1XX 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2019) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

Planning Policy Guidance 
(2014) 

 

Written statement 
HCWS1586 (May 2019) 

 

Lincolnshire Mineral and 
Waste Local Plan Core 
Strategy and 
Development 
Management Plan (2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 
Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2017) 

 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan website 
www.n-kesteven.gov.uk  
  
 

 
This report was written by Felicity Webber, who can be contacted on 01522 
782070 or dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 42

http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


AccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccess

Railway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway LineRailway Line
NoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoise
SensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitive
PropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyProperty

NoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoiseNoise
SensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitiveSensitive
PropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyPropertyProperty

Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Location: Description: 



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Reproduced from the 1996 Os Mapping with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown
Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.
OS LICENCE 1000025370

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west 

Application No:
Scale: 1:10,000

To vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of Planning
Permission Ref: 137302 to amend the site layout, the
management of surface water run-off, the materials for
the tertiary containment system, hours of deliveries and
operations and security provision

Land to the east of Smithfield Road
North Kelsey Moor
Market Rasen

139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426139426

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 1 JULY 2019

Page 43

corey.sonnenberg
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson 
Executive Director for Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 1 July 2019 

Subject: County Matter Application - 139434 
 

Summary: 
Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent:  Barton 
Willmore LLP) for the temporary installation of 12 site security and welfare cabins, 
five water bowsers, generator and associated facilities at Land to the east of 
Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen. 
 
The applicant considers it prudent to increase security at the site during the 
construction of the exploratory well site (subject to planning permission Ref: 
137302 and concurrent planning application Ref: 139426).  The location of the 
security compound is contiguous with and seeks to utilise the approved access 
route of the approved exploratory well site.  The security provision would be 
retained for a period of eighteen months. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 
 
 
Background 
 
1. Planning permission was granted (ref:137302) on 14 May 2018 to extend 

the period of time to carry out the temporary operations to drill an 
exploratory bore hole for conventional hydrocarbons, production testing, 
evaluation and subsequent restoration at land off Smithfield Road, North 
Kelsey Moor.  This application is now subject to a further concurrent 
application (ref: 139426) which is seeking to amend aspects of the approved 
site layout and design and to increase hours of work, noise levels and traffic 
movements. 

 
 
 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4.2



The Application 
 
2. Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent:  Barton 

Willmore LLP) for the temporary installation of 12 site security and welfare 
cabins, five water bowsers, generator and associated facilities at Land to the 
east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen.  The application 
is supported by a Planning Statement which provided an overview of the 
proposed development and included sections on Transport, Ecology, 
Landscape and Visual Impact, Drainage, Noise, Air Quality, Cultural 
Heritage and assessed Cumulative Impacts. 

 
3. The applicant and their security consultants have been in discussions with 

Lincolnshire Police about the current and future operations to be carried out 
at the well site (as permitted by planning permission 137302).  As a result of 
these discussions the applicant has a duty of care to ensure that 
subcontracted workers, suppliers, deliveries and visitors are protected.  
Given the potential threat of protestors gaining access to the site, the 
applicant considered it to be prudent to increase the security at the well site 
and so to provide additional security and welfare facilities from the re-
commencement of Phase 1 construction period – i.e. whilst the exploratory 
well site and access road are under construction and retain the security 
provision for a period of eighteen months.   

 
4. Phase 1 of the exploratory planning permission had been commenced by 

virtue the construction of the access off Smithfield Road and the applicant 
would seek to construct the security compound prior to re-commencing the 
Phase 1 operation relating to the well site.  To allow this the applicant 
proposes to lay track matting from the constructed entrance to the site of the 
proposed security enclosure that would initially be fully surrounded by 2.4 
metre high 'heras' fencing.  The overall area of the proposed site would be 
approximately 0.4 hectares.   

 
5. The proposed security facilities would consist of the following and as 

illustrated in Plan 1 and laid out as illustrated in Plan 2: 
 

• 12 Security and Welfare Cabins comprising: 
o 1 x Mobile Welfare Unit (6.3m x 2.7m); 
o 1 x Site Office (6.1m x 2.5m); 
o 2 x Canteens (7.2m x 2.7m); 
o 6 x 2 berth sleep units (6.3m x 3.0m); 
o 1 x Store (3.7m x 2.7m); 
o 1 x Toilet Block (4.0m x 2.7m); 

• 5 x 1,000 litre Water Tanks; 
• 1 x Generator;  
• 1 x 3,000 litre double skin fuel tank; 
• 2 x mobile lighting towers that can extend to 9.0 metres in height. 

 
6. The are no proposals to take up topsoil, the security/welfare units and other 

associated infrastructure would be stationed on track matting, this will allow 
for natural percolation of surface water run-off at the existing greenfield run-

Page 46



off rates.  Foul waste arising from the toilet blocks and welfare units would 
be collected in built in under-cabin waste tanks.  This will be collected by 
licensed tankers for disposal at an appropriate facility.   

 
7. When construction of the well site commences, including the construction of 

perimeter fencing, the temporary 'heras' fencing will be replaced with 
temporary 2.4 metre high weld mesh fencing with gates giving access onto 
the access road and separate gated access into the well site compound.   

 

 
Plan 1 – Security and welfare units 

 

 
Plan 2 - Security and Welfare compound 

 
8. During Phase 3 Production Testing and Evaluation some of the security and 

welfare units would be relocated to the well site before returning to the 
security compound for the final Phase 4. 

 
 

Page 47



Hours of work, noise and air quality 
 
9. The purpose of the compound is to provide welfare for the security 

personnel who would be patrolling 24 hours a day/seven days a week.  The 
construction and dismantling of the compound would be carried out in line 
with the operational hours of the adjacent well site.  A packaged 'silenced' 
generator would power the site and would emit a typical sound power output 
that would result in a maximum noise level at the nearest sensitive property 
of 25dB(A). Consideration has also been given to the potential for impacts 
on air quality from the exhaust and in view of the distance to the nearest 
property it is unlikely that any adverse impacts would be anticipated. 

 
Traffic and Transport 
 
10. Traffic movements associated with this proposal would initially be HCV 

transportation to bring to the site the tracked matting, fencing, security and 
welfare units, fuel and water tanks and generator.  The installation of these 
elements would be over a period of two to three days and on completion of 
the exploratory operations at the adjacent site or any extended period of 
inactivity, the welfare compound would be dis-assembled and removed from 
site.  The route to and from the site would be via the A46 and B1434 and 
delivery drivers would be directed not to use any other route.   

 
11. To service the welfare compound small tankers would deliver water, fuel and 

remove foul waste up to three times a week (six movements in total) 
dependent of the number of personnel at the site at any period of time.  
Therefore if the number of personnel reduces so would the frequency of 
service tankers attending the site.  In addition to the service tanker 
movements the security personnel would be utilising   

 
12. In respect of security, personnel would patrol largely within or in close 

proximity to the site, although they will travel to and from the site in light 
vehicles such as vans and cars.  These vehicles would not be constrained 
by the prescribed routes that apply to HCV's.  

 
Ecology 
 
13. The site of the compound would be in an agricultural field with no local or 

nationally designated nature conservation sites within 2 kilometres but there 
are eight non-statutory sites.  However, it is considered that they are 
sufficiently distant that no significant impacts would occur.  Notwithstanding 
it is acknowledged that local to the site some disturbance may temporarily 
impact on foraging or commuting bats but given the small size of the site 
and the large amount of undisturbed habitat in the wider local area there 
would not be a significant adverse impact on wildlife from noise and lighting. 

 
Cultural Heritage 
 
14. There are two Grade II listed structures to the south west and within a 

kilometre of the proposed compound however the site would be screened by 

Page 48



the adjacent exploratory wellsite and therefore there would be no greater 
impact on the setting of these structures than already deemed acceptable.  
With regard to archaeology no excavation of the compound site has been 
proposed. 

 
Site and Surroundings 
 
15. The application site lies approximately 1.3km north of Moortown, 2.8km 

south east of North Kelsey, 4.5km south west of Caistor, 5.0km to the south 
of the Viking Way and 5.0km west of the Lincolnshire Wolds AONB.  The 
site is accessed off Smithfield Road which is a single track road with a 
number of passing places along its length.  An area of land at the junction of 
Smithfield Road and the B1434 is also included within the application site.  
The compound would lie to the north east and adjoining the proposed well 
site and a railway line lies to the east of the application site and beyond this 
the landscape becomes rolling hills with the presence of a number of 
telecommunications towers. 

 
16. The site itself is agricultural land (Photograph 1). The surrounding area is 

predominantly level land to agricultural use with trees and hedges along field 
boundaries.  Immediately to the south of the proposed access track is a 
ditch and to the south of this ditch is a line of trees and an existing access 
track.  With the exception of views from the railway line the compound would 
be largely screened from the south west by the exploratory well site and all 
other views are generally obscured by virtue of the hedges and trees 
surrounding the agricultural land. 

 
Proposal Site 

 
 
 
 

Page 49



Main Planning Considerations 
 
Planning Policy Context 
 
17. The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) sets out the 

Government's planning policies for England.  It is a material consideration in 
determination of planning applications and adopts a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development.  A number of paragraphs are of particular 
relevance to this application as summarised: 

 
Paragraphs 7 to 13 – presumption in favour of sustainable development and 
core principles; 

 
Paragraphs 38 to 50 – confirm that the planning system is a plan-led system 
and that application must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Local 
Planning Authorities shall also apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. It also confirms the position regarding the status of existing 
and emerging Local Plans and their policies and that due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing and emerging plans according to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF and their stage of advancement to 
adoption; 

 
Paragraphs 54 to 55 – advises on the use of planning conditions and states 
these should only be sought where they are necessary, directly related to 
the development and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development; 

 
Paragraphs 108 to 111 – advises that development should consider impacts 
on the highway network and highway safety and seek to mitigate impacts to 
an acceptable degree. 

 
Paragraphs 170 to 183 – seeks to conserve and enhance the natural 
environment; prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and protect general 
amenity, prevent adverse impacts as a result of noise pollution; 

 
Paragraphs 184 to 202 – requires that the significance of heritage assets is 
taken into consideration, including any impacts on their settings. 
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of 
heritage or development within its setting. Where a development would lead 
to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage 
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the 
proposal; 

 
Paragraphs 203 to 209 – facilitating the sustainable use of minerals by 
ensuring sufficient supply and no unacceptable adverse impacts. 

 
18. In addition to the NPPF, in March 2014 the Government published the web 

based Planning Policy Guidance (PPG).  The PPG also sets out the overall 
requirements for minerals sites that include exploration for hydrocarbons 

Page 50



and provide direction in relation to assessing environmental impacts such as 
noise, light and visual amenity. 

 
19. For avoidance of doubt, it should be noted that on 6 March 2019 a 

judgement in the case of Stephenson vs SoS MHCLG [2019] EWHC 519 
(Admin) found in favour of the appellant and as a consequence on 14 May 
2019 a Court Order was issued and in accordance with the terms of the 
Court Order, paragraph 209(a) of the NPPF (2018) has be quashed.  
However, Ministerial Written Statement HCWS1586 advises that Chapter 17 
on 'Facilitating the Sustainable Use of Minerals' remains unchanged and 
extant and that for the purposes of the NPPF, hydrocarbon development is 
considered to be a mineral resource. 

 
Local Plan Context 
 
20. Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and 

Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) - the key policies of 
relevance in this case are as summarised: 

 
 Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will 

be granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not 
generate unacceptable adverse impacts to occupants of nearby dwellings or 
other sensitive receptors as a result of a range of different factors/criteria 
(e.g. noise, dust, vibrations, visual intrusion, etc.) 

 
 Policy DM4 (Historic Environment) seeks to protect heritage assets and their 

settings and ensure the impacts are fully assessed. 
 

Policy DM6 (Impact on Landscape and Townscape) states that planning 
permission will be granted provided that due regard has been given to the 
likely impact of the proposed development on the landscape, including 
landscape character, valued or distinctive landscape features and elements 
and important views.  If necessary additional design, landscaping, planting 
and screening will also be required and where new planting is required it will 
be subject to a minimum 10 year maintenance period. 

 
Policy DM9 (Local Sites of Biodiversity Conservation Value) seeks to protect 
locally designated sites and habitats. 

 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development involving transport by road where the highway 
network is of, or will be made up to, an appropriate standard and 
arrangements for site access and traffic would not have an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, flow, residential amenity or environment. 

 
Policy DM16 (Water Resources) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where they would not have an 
unacceptable impact on surface or ground waters and due regard is given to 
water conservation and efficiency. 

 

Page 51



Policy DM17 (Cumulative Impacts) states that planning permission will be 
granted where the cumulative impact would not result in significant adverse 
impacts. 

 
Policy R1 (Restoration and Aftercare) states that proposals must 
demonstrate that restoration will be of high quality and carried out at the 
earliest opportunity; and 

 
Policy R2 (After-use) requires that the proposed after-use should be 
designed in a way that is not detrimental to the local economy and 
conserves and where possible enhances the landscape character, natural 
and historic environment of the area. 

 
21. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) (2017) – the key policies of 

relevance in this case are as follows (summarised): 
 

Policy LP2 (Spatial strategy and settlement hierarchy) identifies the site in 
the countryside; 

 
Policy LP9 (Health and wellbeing) states that development must 
demonstrate satisfactory mitigation measures; 

 
Policy LP13 (Transport) states that development must contribute towards an 
efficient and safe transport network; 

 
Policy LP14 (Water Resources and Flood Risk) states that development 
must not increase the risk of flooding or adverse impacts on water 
resources; 

 
Policy LP17 (Landscape) states that proposals must seek to protect and 
enhance the landscape value and character of the area; 

 
Policy LP21 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) states that proposed 
development should seek to protect, manage and enhance habitat networks; 
and 

 
Policy LP26 (Design and amenity) states that development must make 
effective and efficient use of land and should minimise adverse impacts on 
amenity. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
22. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor L Strange (Adjacent) – is a 

member of the Planning & Regulation Committee and so reserves his 
position until the meeting. 

 
 (b) South Kelsey and Moortown Parish Council – objects to the proposed 

2.4m high fencing, the proposed additional lighting and also the 
associated changes to the operating hours and noise limits (subject of 
the concurrent application ref: 139426). 

Page 52



  
 (c) North Kelsey Parish Council – objects to this application.  The number 

of cabins is considered to be excessive and they object to the proposed 
increase in noise thresholds; increased operating hours and comment 
that the road is not suitable for increased traffic and so there is a 
potential for accidents at the crossroads. 

 
 (d) Caistor Town Council – wishes to maintain its objection of the drilling 

exploration by reason of its disturbance to the neighbourhood through 
noise and vehicle movements. 

 
 (e) Holton le Moor Parish Meeting – has expressed concern with regard to 

the increase in hours of operations and vehicular movements that 
would have adverse impacts on the buildings in the village a number of 
which are over 100 years old and cause disturbance to residents.  The 
application introduces additional lighting and there is concern about 
light spillage causing light pollution.   Overall this and the exploratory 
well will have an adverse impact on the amenity of residents and 
visitors to the area. 

 
 (f) Environmental Health Officer (West Lindsey District Council) – provided 

an informative relating to the 250 metre area if potential contaminative 
use (Railway) within which the proposal site would lie and notes the 
proposed development will be located in a rural area, unfortunately, the 
applicant has not provided any supporting information in relation to light 
spillage, or mitigation measures.  I would therefore recommend that a 
suitable condition is placed on any planning permission granted 
requiring a light mitigation assessment. 

 
 (g) Environment Agency (EA) – does not wish to comment on this 

application. 
 
 (h) Anglian Water – has submitted and Informative Statement and 

Conditions Report and does not indicate an objection to the application 
but has requested that should this application be approved an 
informative should be attached relating to their infrastructure and waste 
water treatment capacity in the area. 

 
 (i) Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) 

– following the submission of revised plans relating to the site entrance 
it is concluded that the proposed development is acceptable and 
accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning application. 

 
 (j) Network Rail – has no objection in principle to the development but 

requested that an informative be attached relating to Abnormal 
Loads/Haulage Route that should not compromise the safety, 
operational needs and integrity of the railway. 

 

Page 53



23. The following bodies/persons were consulted on 10 May 2019 but no 
response or comments had been received within the statutory consultation 
period or by the time this report was prepared: 

 
Local County Council Member, Councillor A Turner 
Lincolnshire County Council Public Health 
Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust 
MOD Safeguarding 
Lincolnshire Police 

 
24. The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site entrance 

and three other locations including the junction of Smithfield Road and the 
B1434, the junction of the B1434 and Easthall Road and the crossroads in 
Moortown.  It has also been advertised in the local press (Lincolnshire Echo 
on Thursday 16 May 2019) and 21 letters of notification were sent to the 
nearest neighbouring residents. 

 
25. 63 representations from 54 residential addresses had been received by the 

time this report was prepared.  A significant number of objections duplicated 
those already registered in relation to the concurrent planning application 
(ref: 139426).  As a consequence the following summarises the objections 
received which relate specifically to this application: 

 
• The need for security because of protestors is exaggerated, the protests 

at Biscathorpe and Laughton were small scale, peaceful and good 
humoured; 

• The new proposal represents a significant expansion on the original 
application for exploration; 

• The proposal does not evaluate the possibility of the site becoming a 
production site; 

• Disruption to local wildlife; 
• Disruption to the peaceful countryside; 
• Smithfield Road not suitable for the proposed increase in traffic and 

damage to B1434 and highway infrastructure especially at Holton le 
Moor will be impacted by the security proposal due to noise, dust, 
vibration, frequency and volume; 

• There are no proposals for landscape planting to screen the site; 
• Threat to water courses and Nettleton Beck nearby; 
• Fossil fuels damage the environment and we should look to renewable 

energy sources; 
• The site may not be in AONB but is close to it and the Viking Way; 
• The application represents an expansion on the previous approved 

development and as a consequence the cumulative impacts of this 
compound with the proposed exploratory site are unacceptable, 
particularly when considered in this location citing noise, light and hours 
and the application hasn't provided noise and lighting assessment; and 

• Doubts that the new proposals will be monitored effectively by LCC. 
 
 

Page 54



District Council’s Recommendations  
 
26. West Lindsey District Council (Planning Authority) – stated that any increase 

of impermeable area could increase the risk of surface water flooding to the 
site or surrounding land.  The noise levels and lighting proposed should not 
have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity.  The containers and all 
ancillary fencing and equipment should be conditioned to be removed 
following cessation of the associated drilling operations and the land 
restored to its formere condition. 

 
Conclusions 
 
27. Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent:  Barton 

Willmore LLP) for the temporary installation of 12 site security and welfare 
cabins, five water bowsers, generator and associated facilities at Land to the 
east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen.  The security 
and welfare compound would be retained until the exploratory well site 
approved in 2018 (ref: 137302) has been restored or no longer required, 
whichever period time is shorter. 

 
28. The compound subject of this application would be adjacent to the northwest 

boundary of well site it would service and access to the site would be via the 
route approved and partially constructed in accordance with approved plans 
onto Smithfield Road.  The proposal seeks to construct the compound prior 
to re-commencement of Phase 1 operations to construct the wellsite.  To 
facilitate the compound construction track matting would be used to permit 
HCV's to cross the field and the same matting would be used to station the 
various cabins and ancillary structures within the compound.  The 
compound would initially be surrounded by temporary 'heras' style fencing 
up to 2.4 metres in height.  Subsequently, the surrounding fencing would be 
replaced with weld mesh and gated in line with that proposed for the well 
site and access route.  The Planning Officer (West Lindsey) has requested 
that a condition be attached to secure the clearance of the site following the 
restoration of the exploratory wellsite. 

 
29. The site would be clearly visible to those using the train, however, all other 

external views would be largely obscured by the trees and hedges 
surrounding the agricultural land and which flank Smithfield Road and 
therefore ultimately totally obscure views from the south west once the 
wellsite itself has been constructed.  Consequently, the compound would not 
have a significant visual impact on the landscape, the setting of any heritage 
asset or distant views from the Wolds AONB and the Viking Way.   

 
30. In respect of archaeological impacts there are no proposals to carry out 

groundworks in relation to the compound and the route of the access is 
subject to an existing approved scheme of archaeological investigation.  The 
intention to use track matting also ensures that surface water run-off would 
be through natural percolation.  The protection of ground and surface water 
has been considered and given that all foul wastes arising from the modular 
units would be removed from the site for disposal/treatment at a licensed 

Page 55



site subject to an informative provided by Anglian Water and that the diesel 
generator and associated infrastructure are bunded in accordance with 
manufacturers' specifications no adverse impacts would be anticipated. 

 
31. The only source of continuous noise and emissions would be associated 

with the diesel generator.  Predicted noise levels at sensitive receptors 
based on the assessed sound power output would not represent an 
unacceptable adverse impact over and above those already deemed 
acceptable in regard to the well site drilling and production test operations.  
In addition the exhaust from the generator would not be considered to 
impact adversely on air quality given the distance and prevailing wind 
direction in relation to sensitive receptors.  

 
32. In respect of the proposed lighting towers, the Environmental Health Officer 

(West Lindsey) has recommended that a condition be attached requiring a 
light mitigation assessment as a consequence your officer recommends that 
a scheme in relation to Security Lighting be secured prior to the site coming 
into use. 

 
33. Having assessed the application, I am therefore satisfied that given its 

position being distant from public views (excepting those using the train) the 
compound would be largely screened by the proposed well site to the south 
west and all other views are generally obscured or distant.  Additionally as 
the modular units would not require groundworks to facilitate their 
installation they have had no impact on underlying archaeology and the 
development does not have any adverse environmental impacts relating to 
water resources or air quality or impacts on ecology, particularly bats.  
Planning conditions can be imposed to ensure that noise levels are 
restricted in line with those proposed for the adjacent well site, that no 
external lighting is installed until a lighting scheme has been submitted and 
approved, that the hours of construction operations of the site are consistent 
with those of the exploratory wellsite it services and that the site is restored 
following restoration of the exploratory wellsite.  Subject to these conditions 
the development would accord with the objectives of CSDMP Policies DM2, 
DM3, DM4, DM5, DM6, DM9, DM15, R1 and R2 and Policies LP2, LP9, 
LP14, LP17, LP21 and LP26 of the CLLP that seeks to protect the historic 
environment, biodiversity, landscape, health and wellbeing and minimise 
adverse impacts on residential amenity. 

 
Transport 
 
34. There would be a number of HCV movements over a two to three day period 

to construct the compound and repeated to remove the structures and 
cabins following final restoration of the well site.  A small number of heavy 
vehicular movements associated with the tankering in of fuel, fresh water 
and the removal of wastes from the security compound and these would 
represent a maximum of 6 movements per week.  All other vehicle 
movements would comprise of light vehicles used by security personnel. 
The Highways Officer considers that the development is acceptable and a 
condition could be imposed to restrict access to the site for the 

Page 56



demobilisation of the site following the construction of the exploratory well 
site.  Subject to this condition I am satisfied that the proposal would not have 
a significant adverse impacts on the highway network or highway safety and 
would not be contrary to CSDMP Policies DM3 and DM14 and CLLP 
Policies LP9 and LP13 which seeks to protect amenity of the local area and 
ensure that the highway network and highway safety are adequately 
addressed. 

 
Overall conclusions 
 
35. The application seeks to provide for the security of personnel and visitors 

carrying out works associated with the adjacent exploratory well site.  
Comments received from the public have been considered and this 
application has also been considered on its merits and its acceptability in 
planning terms. 

 
36. In this case, the proposal does not seek to intensify the exploration 

operations and would only provide a secure environment for the personnel 
carrying out the approved wellsite construction, operations and restoration 
therefore there would be no cumulative effects.  Overall I am satisfied that 
the application has provided a clear explanation of need and given the time 
limited nature for the retention of the compound, any effects would be 
temporary and reversible.  As a consequence the erection of a security and 
welfare compound would accord with the relevant policies cited and 
identified within the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2016) 
including Policy DM17 and Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017). 

 
Human Rights Implications 
 
37. The proposed development has been considered against Human Rights 

implications especially with regard to Article 8 – right to respect for private 
and family life and Protocol 1, Article 1 – protection of property and 
balancing the public interest and well – being of the community within these 
rights and the Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 December 

2020 and by that date all portable building, plant and machinery associated 
with the use hereby permitted shall have been removed and the land 
returned to its previous use as agricultural land. 

 
Reason: To provide for the clearance of the site in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. 

 

Page 57



2. The development hereby permitted shall be retained in accordance with the 
following documents and plans, unless modified by the conditions attached 
to this planning permission: 

 
Planning Application Form (date stamped received 17 April 2019); 
Document Reference: 20271/A5/P7/VY/SO – 'Planning Statement' (date 
stamped received 17 April 2019); 
Drawing No: Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-03 – 'Security& Welfare 
Compound Layout' (date stamped received 12 June 2019); and 
Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-04 – 'Temporary Security & Welfare 
Compound Indicative Floor Space Plan (date stamped received 08 May 
2019); 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is retained in all respects in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
3. No development shall commence until a full security lighting scheme, 

including details to minimise light spillage and any mitigation measures shall 
first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning 
Authority.  The lighting shall be maintained and retained in accordance with 
the approved details for so long as the development hereby permitted is 
required or on completion of restoration of the site whichever may be earlier. 

 
 Reason: In the interest of visual amenity. 
 
4. The construction and restoration of the site hereby permitted shall only be 

carried out during the following hours: 
 

Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours; 
Saturday 07:00 to 13:00; and 
No construction or restoration operations shall occur on Sundays, Bank 
Holidays and Public Holidays. 

 
5. All plant and machinery including the diesel generator shall be adequately 

maintained and silenced in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
recommendations at all times. 

 
Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties. 

 
Informatives 
 
Attention is drawn to: 
 
(i)  E-mail from Environmental Health, West Lindsey District Council dated 7 

June 2019 related to contaminated land; 
 
(ii) Anglian Water Planning Applications – Suggested Informative Statements 

and Conditions Report Ref: 14750/1/0059041dated 5 June 2019; and 
 

Page 58



(iii) In dealing with this application the Mineral Planning Authority has worked 
with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner by giving pre-
application advice in advance of the application, seeking further information 
to address issues identified in the proposal and processed the application 
efficiently so as to prevent any unnecessary delay.  This approach ensures 
the application is handled in a positive way to foster the delivery of 
sustainable development which is consistent with the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and as required by Article 35(2) of the 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015. 

 
Appendix 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application 
Files: W97/131952/14;   
137302, 139426 and 
139434. 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Lancaster 
House, 36 Orchard Street, Lincoln, LN1 1XX 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2019) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

Planning Policy Guidance 
(2014) 

 

Written statement 
HCWS1586 (May 2019) 

 

Lincolnshire Mineral and 
Waste Local Plan Core 
Strategy and 
Development 
Management Plan (2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 
Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2017) 

 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan website 
www.n-kesteven.gov.uk  
  
 

 
This report was written by Felicity Webber, who can be contacted on 01522 
782070 or dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 60

http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application

AccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccess



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Location: Description: 



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Reproduced from the 1996 Os Mapping with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown
Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.
OS LICENCE 1000025370

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west 

Application No:
Scale: 1:10,000

For the temporary installation of 12 site security and
welfare cabins, five water bowsers, generator and
associated facilities

Land to the east of Smithfield Road
North Kelsey Moor
Market Rasen

139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434139434

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 1 JULY 2019

Page 61

corey.sonnenberg_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 3 June 2019
	4.1 To vary conditions 3, 4, 6, 12, 16 and 17 of Planning Permission Ref: 137302 to amend the site layout, the management of surface water run-off, the materials for the tertiary containment system, hours of deliveries and operations and security provision at Land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen - Barton Willmore LLP - 139426
	4.2 For the temporary installation of 12 site security and welfare cabins, five water bowsers, generator and associated facilities at Land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen - Barton Willmore LLP - 139434



